A. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Michael Goodman asks this court to accept review of the 

Court of Appeals decision terminating review designated in Part 

B of this petition. 

B. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Petitioner Michael Goodman seeks review of the affidavit of 

prejudice and motion, manifest error that affects a constitutional 

right. 

Petitioner Michael Goodman moved to reverse in the Court 

of Appeals based on the affidavit of prejudice and was denied 

(appendix A-3). 

Michael then requested discretionary review of the denial of 

the motion to reverse in our Supreme Court. Commissioner 

Steven Goff stated "the motion should be considered part of the 

ongoing appeal from the trial court's January 2012 decision" 

and "error must be assigned in the brief'. 

Michael moved for leave to amend brief and include the 

affidavit of prejudice in his brief. The Court of Appeals denied 

leave. Appendix A-4. 
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The Court of Appeals opinion filed on January 13, 2014 did 

not include review of the affidavit of prejudice. 

Michael's motion for reconsideration requested review of the 

affidavit of prejudice and that appellants were prejudiced not to 

receive fair and full review when the motion for leave to amend 

brief was denied. The motion for reconsideration was denied 

on February 18, 2014, appendix A-4. 

C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

Whether petitioner Michael Goodman/defendants filed a 

timely affidavit of prejudice and motion? 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On March 26, 201 0 this case was filed in Skagit County 

Superior Court. Petitioner Michael Goodman/defendants had 

known Judge Susan Cook for over 30 years, and were former 

neighbors in Anacortes, Washington. 

Before this case started, actual prejudice existed. 

1) Co-defendant Tyson Goodman was involved in an 

altercation with Judge Susan Cook's stepson. 
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2) Respondent Edward Goodman was a co-defendant and 

party in a federal lawsuit with Judge Cook, Case No. 

C95-1360R. 

CP 601-623. 

Defendants Chance Goodman and Tyson Goodman were 

servedApril14, 2010 and Michael and Mary Goodman were 

served April 16, 2010. 

Petitioner Michael Goodman/Defendants did not believe they 

would have a fair and impartial trial before Judge Susan Cook. 

On June 1, 2010, co-defendant Tyson Goodman filed the 

affidavit of prejudice and motion. CP 201. See Appendix A -1. 

Judge Susan Cook had not made any discretionary rulings or 

orders prior to June 1, 2010. 

On June 3, 2010 Judge Cook denied the affidavit and 

defendants objected: 

"Tyson Goodman objects to this case being heard by Judge 

Cook, as his affidavit of prejudice was filed in a timely 

fashion, LoweD Ashbach #2777, 6-3-10". Appendix A-2. 

CP 529. 
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E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED 

Michael contends that the trial court erred when it denied 

defendants affidavit of prejudice and motion. 

The Court reviews a trial court's denial of an affidavit of 

prejudice de novo. See State v. Tarabochia. 150 Wn. 2D 59, 

64-65, 68, 74 P.3d 642 (2003); In re Estate o[Black, 116 Wn. 

App. 492, 496, 500, 66 P.3d 678 (2003). Under RCW 4.12.040 

and .050 each party may file a timely motion and affidavit of 

prejudice to remove one superior court judge. For the motion 

to be timely, the party must file the motion "before the judge 

presiding has made any order or ruling involving 

discretion" RCW 4.12.050(1). Filing a timely motion and 

affidavit divests the judge of authority to pass on the merits of 

the case. Lamon v. Butler, 112 Wn.2d 193,201-02,770 P.2d 

1027 (1989). 

Yet, if the party shows actual prejudice, the court must 

consider a motion for disqualification even if the statutory right 

has been exhausted. State v. Palmer, 5 Wash.App. 405, 411-12, 

487 P.2d 627 (1971). 
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1) Michael's United States Constitutional rights provided by 

the Fourteenth Amendment and the Due Process Clause, 

including "equal protection of the laws" are violated. 

2) Michael's Washington State Constitutional rights 

provided in Article 1 section 3, "due process" and a "fair 

tribunal" are violated. 

The appellate court will review pursuant to RAP 2.5 (a)(3) 

manifest errors which affecting a constitutional right. 

Pursuant RAP 2.4 (b) The appellate court will review a trial 

court order or ruling not designated in the notice, including an 

appealable order, if (1) the order or ruling prejudicially affects 

the decision designated in the notice, and (2) the order is 

entered, or the ruling made, before the appellate court accepts 

review. 

The affidavit of prejudice is a structural error prior to the 

merits. 

The Court of Appeals substantially prejudiced Michael's 

ongoing appeal by denying his motion for leave to amend brief 

and include the denial of the affidavit of prejudice as assigned 

error. 
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Actual prejudice existed before this case started and 

defendants filed a timely affidavit of prejudice as their first 

motion in the trial court. Judge Cook had not made any 

discretionary rulings or orders prior to the affidavit of prejudice. 

F. CONCLUSION 

The Petitioner Michael Goodman filed a timely affidavit of 

prejudice and may the Court please accept review for the 

reasons indicated in Part E (pages 4 and 5) and grant one 

change of judge. 

a"t"Ef