NO: 90025-6

IN THE SUPRE OF THE STATE OF	WASHINGTON Washington State Suprem
EDWARD M. GOODMAN and BERNICE S. GOODMAN, husband and wife, Respondents,	APR - 3 2014 Ronald R. Carpenter Clerk Respondents ANSWER TO PETITION
Vs.) FOR REVIEW
MICHAEL J. GOODMAN, et ux., et al.,)))
Petitioner.)))

COMES NOW Respondents, by and through their attorney C.

Thomas Moser, in opposition to Petitioner's Petition For Review and now ask this Court to deny the petition.

Petition For Review: Petitioner's seeks review of the Order

Denying Motion For Reconsideration, entered by the Court of Appeals on
February 18, 2014, only as to the issue of an affidavit of prejudice. The

Order followed the Unpublished Opinion of the Court of Appeals entered

on January 13, 2014, attached as Appendix A.

Issue Presented: The issue presented for review in Part C of the Petition is "Whether petitioner Michael Goodman/defendants filed a timely affidavit of prejudice and motion?" That issue was not raised by

ORIGINAL

Petitioner as an "Assignment of Error" in the Brief filed in the Court of Appeals. Attached as **Appendix B** is a copy of page 4 of the Brief filed by Petitioner, which makes no mention of the affidavit of prejudice.

Consequently, the unpublished opinion of the Court of Appeals does not address the order denying the affidavit of prejudice. See Appendix A.

First Appeal of Issue: This issue has been before this Court previously, raised by Petitioner in cause number 88811-6, filed by Petitioner by Motion For Discretionary Review, dated May 11, 2013. The issue in that appeal was identified by Petitioner as "did the Defendants/Petitioner file a timely affidavit of prejudice in Skagit County Superior Court?" The Petitioner challenged a Court of Appeals order entered April 23, 2013, entitled Order Denying Motion To Reverse And Denying Motion To Stay Trial Court Proceedings, Appendix C. After review, the Commissioner of this Court held that "The Court of Appeals did not err or depart from accepted practices by denying the motion to reverse" and denied the motion for discretionary review. That ruling was affirmed by Order entered by Chief Justice Madsen on September 4, 2013, Appendix D.

Second Appeal of Issue: Petitioner filed a subsequent appeal with this Court by Motion For Discretionary Review, dated December 2, 2013. The issue raised by Petitioner was "Whether Michael should be allowed"

leave to amend opening brief to assign error to an affidavit of prejudice?"

That motion was denied by this Court and no new cause number was assigned. The December 5, 2013 letter from this Court stated "Since the rules do not allow for review by the Supreme Court of a ruling by the Court of Appeals clerk, the Petitioner's motion is rejected."

Petitioner now returns to this Court for the third time seeking relief concerning the denial of an affidavit of prejudice by the trial court, an issue never raised on appeal or argued in Petitioner's brief.

Statement of The Case: The brief description of this litigation by the Commissioner of this Court is accurate: "This matter involves a dispute between brothers Edward and Michael Goodman over property located at Lake Campbell in Skagit County.¹" Petitioner's Statement Of The Case, Part D, of the Petition contains not only inaccurate allegations, there is nothing in record to support the allegations. Petitioner states that he has known the trial judge for over 30 years and was a former neighbor². There is nothing in the record about this allegation. Petitioner states that his son was involved in an altercation with the trial judge's stepson³ but makes no reference to any part of the record below to support this allegation. Petitioner says Respondent Edward Goodman and the trial

¹ Ruling Denying Review, page 1, June 25, 2013, Cause number 88811-6.

² Petition For Review, page 2

³ Petition For Review, page 2

judge were a co-defendant in a federal law suit⁴, but references documents filed after trial concluded.

Standard Of Review: Petitioner fails to provide authority in support to the Petition, except to say that trial court and Court of Appeals erred. The considerations governing Supreme Court review are outlined in RAP 13.4(b), which is not cited by Petitioner. None of the four considerations are applicable to the Petition. There is no conflict among the Courts of Appeal or with the Supreme Court, no Constitutional issues presented and no issue of substantial public interest. Petitioner does raise Constitutional issues, but fails to apply them to the facts in the present case. This will be discussed more below.

Affidavit Of Prejudice Untimely: The trial court denied the affidavit of prejudice because it was untimely. Appendix D. The trial judge determined "that discretionary ruling was previously made by Judge Cook on 4/23/10 after all four defendants were served." The prior order was a Temporary Restraining Order entered in open court and Petitioner was represented by counsel. Petitioner ignores the trial judge's determination and simply argues that "Judge Susan Cook had not made any discretionary rulings or orders prior to June 1, 2010.5" The burden was

⁴ Petition For Review, page 3

⁵ Petition For Review, page 3.

on Petitioner in the proceedings below to challenge the trial court's finding that a discretionary ruling was made before the affidavit of prejudice was filed. Petitioner failed to meet that challenge and failed to even assign error to the trial court's order denying the affidavit of prejudice.

Constitutional Issues: For the first time Petitioner raises

Constitutional issues in support of the Petition. Without any argument or authority Petitioner states that his rights under the Unites States and Washington Constitutions have been denied⁶. These are issues not raised in Petitioner's brief filed with the Court of Appeals. See **Appendix B**.

These issues were not raised at the trial court. This Court has held that such tactics will not be tolerated. In *State v. Hudson*, 124 Wash. 2d 107, 874 P.2d 160 (1994) the Appellant defendant raised state constitutional issues in a supplemental brief for the first time. In rejecting that issue, this Court stated as follows:

To allow Hudson to engage in a full *Gunwall* analysis so late in the appeal would encourage parties to save their state constitutional claims for the reply brief and would lead to unbalanced and incomplete development of the issues for review. *See Wood v. Postelthwaite*, 82 Wash.2d 387, 389, 510 P.2d 1109 (1973) ("To allow the petitioner to raise issues not addressed in his petition would be an injustice to the party opposing the petition and inconsistent with the rules on appeal."); *see also* RAP 10.3(c) (reply

⁶ Petition For Review, page 5

brief should be limited to a response to the issues in the brief); RAP 13.7(b) (generally, the Supreme Court will review only the questions raised in the petition for review and the answer). This concern is particularly relevant here as demonstrated by the fact that the State, being unaware of Hudson's state constitutional claim, never engaged in state constitutional analysis in its briefing. We decline to address Hudson's state constitutional claim for these reasons.

State v. Hudson, 124 Wn.2d 107, 120, 874 P.2d 160, 167 (1994)

The Court should reject the untimely and unsupported allegation that Petitioner's constitutional rights were violated by either the trial court or Court of Appeals.

Award of Attorney Fees: Respondents ask this Court to deny the Petition For Review and award reasonable attorney fees for this continuing series of appeals filed by a pro se litigant who is unhappy with the result of a fair trial conducted in Skagit County Superior Court. This request is made pursuant to RAP 18.1(j). It should also be noted that the Court of Appeals has awarded attorney fees to Respondents because it was determined that the Petitioner's appeal was frivolous⁷.

Conclusion: Petitioner has failed to demonstrate how the Court of Appeals committed any error or how this appeal complies with any of the considerations governing acceptance of review by this Court pursuant to

6

⁷ Unpublished Opinion, page 8

RAP 13.4(b). The Petition should be denied and Respondents awarded attorney fees.

DATED this ____ day of April, 2014.

C. Thomas Moser

Attorney for Respondents 1204 Cleveland Avenue Mount Vernon, WA 98273

360-428-7900

360-428-7900 WSBA # 7283